
- 1 - 

 
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
MEETING OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
MONDAY 19TH MARCH 2012 AT 6.00 P.M. 

 
COMMITTEE ROOM, THE COUNCIL HOUSE, BURCOT LANE, BROMSGROVE 

 
 

MEMBERS: Councillors Mrs. R. L. Dent (Chairman), Mrs. C. J. Spencer (Vice-
Chairman), Mrs. J. M. Boswell, J. R. Boulter, Ms. M. T. Buxton, 
S. J. Dudley, K. A. Grant-Pearce, Mrs. J. M. L. A. Griffiths, 
Miss P. A. Harrison, Mrs. H. J. Jones, R. J. Shannon, 
S. P. Shannon and L. J. Turner 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes  
 

2. Declarations of Interest  
 

3. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing 
Committee held on 5th January 2012 (Pages 1 - 2) 
 

4. Licensing Act Annual Report (Pages 3 - 10) 
 

5. Police and Social Responsibility Bill - verbal update from the Acting Licensing 
Manager  
 

6. To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the 
Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the 
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature that it cannot wait until 
the next meeting  
 
 
 

 K. DICKS 
Chief Executive  

The Council House 
Burcot Lane 
BROMSGROVE 
Worcestershire 
B60 1AA 
 
8th March 2012 





- 3 - 

 
 
 

INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC 
 
Access to Information  
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 widened the rights of 
press and public to attend Local Authority meetings and to see certain 
documents.  Recently the Freedom of Information Act 2000 has further 
broadened these rights, and limited exemptions under the 1985 Act. 
 

Ø You can attend all Council, Cabinet and Committee/Board 
meetings, except for any part of the meeting when the business 
would disclose confidential or “exempt” information. 

Ø You can inspect agenda and public reports at least five days before 
the date of the meeting. 

Ø You can inspect minutes of the Council, Cabinet and its 
Committees/Boards for up to six years following a meeting. 

Ø You can have access, upon request, to the background papers on 
which reports are based for a period of up to six years from the date 
of the meeting.  These are listed at the end of each report. 

Ø An electronic register stating the names and addresses and 
electoral areas of all Councillors with details of the membership of 
all Committees etc. is available on our website. 

Ø A reasonable number of copies of agendas and reports relating to 
items to be considered in public will be made available to the public 
attending meetings of the Council, Cabinet and its 
Committees/Boards. 

Ø You have access to a list specifying those powers which the Council 
has delegated to its Officers indicating also the titles of the Officers 
concerned, as detailed in the Council’s Constitution, Scheme of 
Delegation. 

 
You can access the following documents: 
 

Ø Meeting Agendas 
Ø Meeting Minutes 
Ø The Council’s Constitution 

 
at  www.bromsgrove.gov.uk 
 



- 4 - 

Declaration of Interests - Explained 
 
Definition of Interests 
 
A Member has a PERSONAL INTEREST if the issue being discussed at a 
meeting affects the well-being or finances of the Member, the Member’s family 
or a close associate more than most other people who live in the ward 
affected by the issue. 
 
Personal interests are also things relating to an interest the Member must 
register, such as any outside bodies to which the Member has been appointed 
by the Council or membership of certain public bodies. 
 
A personal interest is also a PREJUDICIAL INTEREST if it affects: 

Ø The finances, or 
Ø A regulatory function (such as licensing or planning) 

Of the Member, the Member’s family or a close associate AND which a 
reasonable member of the public with knowledge of the facts would believe 
likely to harm or impair the Member’s ability to judge the public interest. 
 
Declaring Interests 
 
If a Member has an interest they must normally declare it at the start of the 
meeting or as soon as they realise they have the interest. 
 
EXCEPTION: 
If a Member has a PERSONAL INTEREST which arises because of 
membership of another public body the Member only needs to declare it if and 
when they speak on the matter. 
 
If a Member has both a PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTEREST they 
must not debate or vote on the matter and must leave the room. 
 
EXCEPTION: 
If a Member has a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a meeting 
at which members of the public are allowed to make representations, give 
evidence or answer questions about the matter, the Member has the same 
rights as the public and can also attend the meeting to make representations, 
give evidence or answer questions BUT THE MEMBER MUST LEAVE THE 
ROOM ONCE THEY HAVE FINISHED AND CANNOT DEBATE OR VOTE. 
However, the Member must not use these rights to seek to improperly 
influence a decision in which they have a prejudicial interest. 
 
For further information please contact Committee Services, Legal, 
Equalities and Democratic Services, Bromsgrove District Council, The Council 
House, Burcot Lane, Bromsgrove, B60 1AA 
 
Tel: 01527 873232 Fax: 01527 881414 
Web: www.bromsgrove.gov.uk     email: committee@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
 



 

B R O M S G R O V E  D I S T R I C T  C O U N C I L 
 

MEETING OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY, 5TH JANUARY 2012 AT 6.00 P.M. 
 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillors Mrs. R. L. Dent (Chairman), Mrs. C. J. Spencer (Vice-
Chairman), Mrs. J. M. Boswell, J. R. Boulter, Ms. M. T. Buxton, 
S. J. Dudley, K. A. Grant-Pearce, Mrs. J. M. L. A. Griffiths (substituting for 
P. J. Whittaker), Mrs. H. J. Jones, R. J. Shannon, S. P. Shannon and 
L. J. Turner 
 

 Invitees: Councillor C. B. Taylor, Portfolio Holder for Planning, Core 
Strategy, Regulatory Services and Strategic Housing  
 

 Officers: Mrs. C. Felton, Mrs. A. Heighway, Mrs. S. Sellers, 
Mr. C. Santoriello-Smith and Mrs. P. Ross 
 

 
 

16/11 APOLOGIES  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Miss P. Harrison and P. 
J. Whittaker. 
 

17/11 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 

18/11 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the Licensing Committee meeting held on 12th December 
2011 were submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes be approved as a correct record. 
 

19/11 UPDATE REPORT RE: REVIEW OF DESIGNATED PUBLIC PLACE 
ORDERS  
 
The Committee considered a report that provided Members with an updated 
position following the Licensing Committee meeting held on 12th December 
2011.   
 
The Senior Community Safety Project Officer introduced the report and in 
doing so informed the Committee that during the Licensing Committee 
meeting held on 12th December 2011 it had become clear from the 
representations made at this meeting there was a need to engage with the 
community further in respect of their understanding of the purpose of a 
Designated Public Place Order (DPPO).  Further representations received 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Licensing Committee 
5th January 2012 

 

from the Hagley and Rubery DPPO consultation exercise facilitated by 
Bromsgrove District Council’s Community Safety Team had highlighted that 
there was a misunderstanding as to the exact purpose of a DPPO.  
Community members had wrongly referred to the DPPO as an alcohol free 
zone.  It was also clear that members of the public believed that where 
DPPOs existed there was a blanket ban on the consumption of alcohol. 
 
Members were therefore asked to consider a revised programme for the 
review of the District DPPOs in order for time to be built into the process to 
enable officers to undertake a more detailed and widespread public 
awareness raising campaign.  The Senior Community Safety Project Officer 
informed the Committee that, where consultation had already taken place or 
was currently underway, all responses received would be used to assist 
officers in detailing the appropriate methods for conducting their programme of 
community awareness raising.  
 
Members were asked to note that officers would be undertaking a programme 
to replace the current signage displayed within the existing areas covered by 
DPPOs throughout the District.  The replacement of the existing signage with 
updated signage would enable the DPPO powers to be exercised in the 
proper manner should circumstances arise that would require the police to 
deal with adults who were drinking in areas affected by the order in an anti 
social manner.   
 
Following further discussion it was: 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that the current review programme of Designated Public Place Orders 
 be suspended: 
(b) that officers be tasked to undertake a comprehensive programme of 
 raising public awareness as detailed in the report; and 
(c) that officers be tasked to report back to the Licensing Committee in 3 
 months’ time detailing how this would be achieved and the impact this 
 would have on the overall DPPO review. 
 
 

The meeting closed at 6.20 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 2



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING 
COMMITTEE  19th MARCH 2012 
 
LICENSING ACT ANNUAL REVIEW 
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Councillor Kit Taylor 
Portfolio Holder Consulted   No 
Relevant Head of Service Steve Jorden – Head of 

Worcestershire Regulatory Services 
Wards Affected  All Wards 
Ward Councillor Consulted N/A 
Non-Key Decision  

 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 

 
1.1  This report is an overall view of functions carried out under the 

Licensing Act 2003 by the Worcestershire Regulatory Services (WRS) 
Enforcement and Licensing Team for Bromsgrove district during 2011.  
It shows Officers are developing working practices and procedures in 
partnership with the responsible authorities to ensure licence holders 
comply with all relevant legislation and that our licence trade contribute 
to a safe and successful night time economy.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1  The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that 
 

 the Annual report on the Licensing Act 2003 be noted. 
 
 
 3. KEY ISSUES 
  
 Financial Implications    
 
3.1   There are no financial implications within this report 
 
 Legal Implications 

 
3.2 The Council is responsible for carrying out the licensing function under 

the Licensing Act 2003.  The Act regulates the sale of alcohol, the 
provision of entertainment, the showing of film and late night 
refreshment. 

 
3.3 The Council has delegated its licensing function to its Licensing 

Committee, Sub Committees and Licensing Officers referred 
collectively to as the “Licensing Authority”. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 3



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING 
COMMITTEE  19th MARCH 2012 
 
3.4  The Statement of Licensing Policy was prepared in accordance with the 

provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 and the Guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State under section 182 of the Act.  The Council’s Policy 
was adopted and came into force on the 7th January 2011 and will 
remain in place until January 2014 when it is due to be reviewed. 

 
3.5 The Statement of the Licensing Policy is a live document, which is 

subject to review, to meet the changing needs of the community, 
business circumstances and legislation. 

 
3.6   The Council must promote the four licensing objectives which are: 
  
 a) Prevention of crime and disorder 
 b) Public safety 
 c) The prevention of public nuisance 
 d) The protection of children from harm 

 
 The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

The Licensing Authority also has a duty under Section 17 of the Crime 
and Disorder Act 1988 to do all it can to prevent Crime and Disorder in 
the District.  The Licensing Authority works closely in partnership with all 
other relevant bodies and works towards the exchange of intelligence 
where ever possible to prevent Crime and Disorder. 

 
Public Safety 
The Licensing Authority works in partnership with West Mercia Police and 
other responsible authorities to ensure the safety of the public who use 
licensed premises.  A targeted approach with regards to inspection and 
enforcement of licensed premises has been implemented. 

 
The Prevention of Public Nuisance / anti social behaviour 
The Licensing Authority will take an objective view following relevant 
representations to applications as to the potential for nuisance and anti 
social behaviour; Officers have worked with the responsible authorities 
and applicants to mediate, and has in many instances been able to 
attached appropriate and proportionate conditions to the licences with 
agreement from all parties. This agreement addresses the concerns 
raised which in turn will prevent public nuisance and anti social 
behaviour. 

 
The Protection of Children from Harm 
The Licensing Authority recognises that there are a range of activities for 
which licences may be sought, meaning that children can be expected to 
visit many of these premises, sometimes on their own, for food and/or 
other entertainment.  

 

Page 4



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING 
COMMITTEE  19th MARCH 2012 
 The Licensing Act 2003 allows access by children to licensed premises 

subject to certain statutory restrictions.  For example, children are 
allowed to be on premises, or part of premises, where the primary 
function is other than the retail sale of alcohol.  

 
• Licensing Officers are continuing to work together with the 

responsible authorities to improve exchange of intelligence to 
those who have a concern in the protection of children from harm; 
including the West Mercia Police, WRS Trading Standards and the 
Safeguarding Children Board. 

 
3.7 The Council’s aim is to facilitate well run and managed premises with 

licence holders displaying sensitivity to the impact on local residents.  
Licenses we issue under the Licensing Act 2003 are: 

 
a) Personal Licence 
b) Premises Licence 
c) Temporary Event Notice 

 
3.8 The Licensing Authority is responsible under the Act for granting licences 

for any licensable activity, namely: 
  

a) The sales by retail of alcohol 
b) The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club or, to the 

order of a member of the club. 
c) The provision of regulated entertainment and 
d) The provision of late night refreshment 

 
3.9 Late night refreshment means the sale of hot food or drink to members of 

the public between the hours of 11pm and 5am.  
 
3.10   Regulated entertainment provided in the presence of an audience for 
         the purpose of entertaining that audience, which consists of: 

 
a) The performance of a play  
b) The exhibition of a film 
c) An indoor sporting event 
d) Outdoor boxing or wrestling 
e) A performance of live or recorded Music 
f) A performance of Dance.  

 
 
 Service / Operational Implications  
 
3.11 The annual report includes at Appendix 1 a register of applications,  
         temporary event notices, personal licenses and all other functions   
         carried our under the Act during the calendar year of 2011. 
 

Page 5



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING 
COMMITTEE  19th MARCH 2012 
 
3.12 There have been 13 credible complaints made to Worcestershire 

Regulatory Services Office during the year 1st January 2011 to 31st 
December 2011 for Bromsgrove.  A breakdown of Licensing complaints 
for Bromsgrove which have been investigated by the WRS Enforcement 
Officer and the Licensing Officer for West Mercia Police are as follows:- 

  
 2011 
Irresponsible Drinks Promotions 0 
Noise/Disorder related issues 13 
U18’s reported 0 
Smoking on Licensed Premises 0 

 
Some of these complaints have been resolved very quickly through 
mediation, letter or advice, by Environmental Health Officers, WRS 
Licensing Enforcement Officers and Licensing Police Officer working in 
partnership whilst others have been prolonged, requiring the gathering of 
evidence.   

 
3.13  No permission is required from the Licensing Authority in relation to 

Temporary Event Notices.  This is a notification scheme; currently the 
only responsible authority who can object is the Police; who must then 
serve a counter notice.  Premises may have up to 12 events in any one 
year. 

  
• 176 Notices were served on the Council.  No counter notices were 

received from the Police. 
 
• No premises used their full quota of temporary events and 

therefore no advice was issued regarding the need for a Premises 
Licence. 

 
3.14  Enforcement - The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy states that  
        the Licensing Authority would establish protocols with local police and 

other relevant authorities.  The protocols will set out how the Enforcement 
will be effected by cooperative working between the Licensing Authority 
(which has certain enforcement duties) and the Police and other 
Responsible Authorities and gathering evidence on problem premises.    

 
3.15  Licensing Officers and Police Licensing Officers are working more in  
        partnership, visiting premises across all districts within Worcestershire.  

Early Intervention - Where complaints are made against premises, or 
where there is a concern by Officers that there is a failure of general 
management, an early intervention programme is commenced.  It may be 
that this information comes via the Police Licensing Officer prompting a 
joint visit to engage with the Licensee and the Brewery Area Manager. 

 

Page 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING 
COMMITTEE  19th MARCH 2012 
3.16  This action accords with the Enforcement Policy and National Guidance   
         to follow three distinct stages, (Traffic light warnings)  
 
 a) Advice       (green)   
 
  b) Written warning           (amber)  
 

 c) Licence Review / Court Action for Breach of Statute / Licence 
Condition   (red) 

 
3.17  SIA (Security Industry Authority) – WRS Licensing Officers are certified  
         by the Security Industry Authority to carry out inspections of door staff   
         and these Certificates have been renewed during 2011 and last for three 
         years. 
 
3.18  Pubwatch – Worcestershire Regulatory Services attends Pubwatch on  
         behalf of each Licensing Authority; these meetings are normally held on  
         a monthly basis, and are attended by most of the town centre licensed  
         premises managers, the Police, and usually CCTV staff.  An  
         Enforcement officer from WRS will continue to attend on a regular basis  
         to discuss and keep under review matters relating to licensing.   
 
3.19  It is of paramount importance that Members’ receive regular and modern  
        training in the matters of Hearings and Reviews (Licensing Act 2003) and    
        that every opportunity is shared to reduce cost.  WRS Licensing Officers  
        gave training to Members in most districts during 2011. 
 
3.20  Parliament is currently looking at “Rebalancing of the Licensing Act”   
         bringing in changes which may/will need to be implemented.   
         (Information sheets will be circulated to Members as soon as Officers  
         know the implementation date) – these changes include: 
 

• Introducing late night levy’s (premises opening later than midnight 
– shared revenue between the Local Authority and the Police) 

• Changes to the Temporary Event Notice system (extending police 
response times, allowing Local Authorities to add conditions) 

• Removing the “vicinity test” for interested parties  
• Applicants to give greater consideration to the local area when 

making their application 
• Giving Local Authorities power to suspend licenses due to non-

payment of fees. 
• Reduce the burden of proof on Licensing Authorities (decision 

making will become “appropriate” rather than “necessary” to 
promote licensing objectives). 

• Increase the weight Licensing Authorities will have to give to 
relevant representations and objection notices from the Police. 

• Making local Health bodies responsible authorities 
 

Page 7



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING 
COMMITTEE  19th MARCH 2012 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT    

 
4.1 None 

 
 

5. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1  Register of premises 
 

  
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:   Sue Garratt – Acting Licensing Manager 
   Worcestershire Regulatory Services 
 
E Mail: sue.garratt@worcsregservices.gov.uk 
 
Tel:   (01527) 881454/881263 
 

Page 8



   

Licensing 
Committee 

 

 
 

 

19th March 2012  
 

 
 
 
THE PUBLIC REGISTER 
Number of Licences at 31st December 2011 
 

 2010 2011 
Personal Licences  641 709 
Premises Licences 295 308 
Club Premises 
Certificates 

41 41 

 
 
Number of Licence Applications Received for the Year 2011 
 

 2010 2011 
Personal Licences 48 68 
New Applications for Premises 
Licences 

13 13 

Temporary Event Notices 162 176 
 
 
Number of Licences which have required Hearings / Review    / 
Appeals 2011 
 
Hearings   1 
Reviews  0 
Appeals to Magistrates Court  0 
 
 
Number of Licences that have ceased to trade / lapsed licences  
 
 

         
 
 

 

 
Ceased to trade / lapsed licences  

 

 
3 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Committee held on 5th January 2012
	4 Licensing Act Annual Report
	Appendix 1 - The Public Register Licensing Act


